
 Agenda 

Special Called Meeting Agenda:   May 21, 2019 • Page 1 of 3 
 

 
May 2019 

 

Special Called Meeting 
 Tuesday, May 21, 2019 • 8:15 a.m. • Harrison County Development Commission 

 
 
 
 
 

I.   Call to Order and Declare a Quorum (Levens, President) 

II.  Agenda Adjustments 

III.  Meeting Minutes  

 April 16, 2019 – Exhibit A  

IV.  Guests / Comments 

V.  Items Requiring a Vote 

 Retention Policy – Exhibit B 

  Open Records Request Policy Review – Exhibit C 

 Land Sale  

o VPD, LLC – Exhibit D 

 Declaration of Covenants Rewrite for North Harrison County Industrial 
Complex (NHCIC) – Exhibit E 

 The Innovation Center Roof Resolution – Emergency Declaration – Exhibit F 

 Auto Lease – Exhibit G 

 

Finance  (Sneed, Chairman) 

 Approve Financial Statements for March 2019  

o Operations Financial Statements – Exhibit H,I,J,K,L,M 

o Utilities Financial Statements – Exhibit N,O 
 
 



 Agenda 

Special Called Meeting Agenda:   May 21, 2019 • Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

 Approve Financial Claims for March 2019 

o Operation Claims Statements – Exhibit P 

o Utilities Claims Statements – Exhibit Q 

 

VI.  Committee Activities 

 Marketing & Industrial  (Castiglia, Chairman) 

o Team Reports – Exhibit R 

 

 The Innovation Center  

 TIC Director’s Report – Exhibit S 

 The Innovation Center - Discussion  

 By-Laws – Exhibit T 

 

 Administrative, Engineering & Maintenance (Levens, Chairman 

 New Bush Hog  

 Pump Station #4 

VII.  Director’s Report  

o Executive Session to Discuss Property  

VIII.  Old/New Business 

 Personnel Issue Checks Delivered to Attorney  

 Trust Balance  

 Wolf River – Board of Supervisors May 13th  

 Zoning Variance Approved  

 Plat NHCIC/Done 

  BP Award – Seawall  

 Attendance Policy – Exhibit U 

 Knight Abbey Commitment Letter – Exhibit V 



 Agenda 

Special Called Meeting Agenda:   May 21, 2019 • Page 3 of 3 
 

 MDA Site Development – Exhibit W 

IX.  Legal  

X.  Announcements / Notices 

 Next Board of Commission Meeting: June 11, 2019 @ 8:15 a.m.  

 
 

XI.  Adjourn 

 

 



1 
 

MINUTES 
HARRISON COUNTY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

April 16, 2019 
 

The April regular meeting of the Harrison County Development Commission was called to order 
at 8:17 am on Tuesday, April 16, 2019 at Harrison County Development Commission, Gulfport, 
Mississippi. 
 
Commissioners present: President Jimmy Levens, Brian Gollott, John “Shorty” Sneed, Frank 
Bordeaux, Cliff Kirkland, Mark Schloegel, Jennifer Burke, Rip Daniels, Sam LaRosa, Frankie 
Castiglia, Sharon Bentz-Mustered, and Warren Conway (entered as noted).  
  
Staff members present: Executive Director Bill Lavers (via phone), Marcia Crawford, Michelle 
McGraw, Barbara Rominger, Lori Frazier, and Michelle Walker as recording secretary. Dr. 
Stephen Whitt, Executive Director with The Innovation Center was also present.  
 
Consultants present: Legal Counsel Jim Simpson and Don Clark with DCC Consultants. 
 
 
The media was notified of this meeting.  
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
Commissioner Levens called the meeting to order at this time.  
 

II. Agenda Adjustment  
Commissioner Castiglia made a motion to put personnel issue under legal and seconded by 
Commissioner Sneed. After discussion, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
III. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS  

Staci and Robert Hopkins, Virgil Gillespie, Cindy Lamb with Pickering Firm, Donald Scharr 
with Harrison County Utility Authority, and Richie Ashley with Neel Schaffer.  
 

IV. MEETING MINUTES 
Motion was made by Commissioner Kirkland to approve the March 12, 2019 meeting 
minutes and seconded by Commissioner Daniels. After discussion, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
(Commissioner Conway entered at this time) 

 
V. Vote Items  

 DCS – Fayards Cold Storage Free Port Warehouse Exemption  
Commissioner Sneed made a motion to approve the Fayards cold storage free 
port warehouse exemption and bring to the Board of Supervisors for their 
approval and seconded by Commissioner Schloegel. 11-1 Affirmative vote 
motion passed. Commissioner Bordeaux, Kirkland, Castiglia, Conway, Burke, 
LaRosa, Daniels, Mustered-Bentz, Schloegel, Sneed, and Levens voted Aye. 
Commissioner Gollott voted nay.  
 
 
 
 

mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit A



2 
 

 
 

 Auto Lease 
Engineering Committee recommended to lease a vehicle from Henderson Ford 
or Astro Ford. Commissioner Kirkland made a motion to approve the Engineering 
Committee’s recommendation and 18,000 miles a year on the vehicle lease and 
seconded by Commissioner Conway. After discussion, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

 Necaise Lease 
Commissioner Castiglia made a motion to approve the construction lay down 
yard in the amount of $3,600.00 a month and seconded by Commissioner 
Schloegel. Roll call vote for the resolution Commissioner Bordeaux, Castiglia, 
Kirkland, Conway, Burke, Gollott, LaRosa, Daniels, Mustered-Bentz, Schloegel, 
Sneed, and Levens voted Aye. Motion passed.  

 
 Rail Grant  

Commissioner Daniels made a motion to approve the rail grant from Mississippi 
Development Authority (MDA) in the amount of $3,5000,000.00 under the MS rail 
grant program to expand and seconded by Commissioner Schloegel. Roll call 
vote for the resolution Commissioner Bordeaux, Castiglia, Kirkland, Conway, 
Burke, Gollott, LaRosa, Daniels, Mustered-Bentz, Schloegel, Sneed, and Levens 
voted Aye. Motion passed.  

 
 DWIRLSF – Water Tank Loan  

Commissioner Daniels made a motion to approve the water tank loan at a 1.9 
interest rate loan to paint the tanks and seconded by Commissioner Bordeaux. 
After discussion, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Paint Tanks  

Don Clark gave an update on plans for upgrading and the condition of the tanks 
now.  
 

 SWIB 
Bill Lavers gave an update on the SWIB grant by phone.  

 
 72 Acre Forestry Mulching  

Commissioner Levens gave an update on the 72 acre forestry mulching. 
Commissioner Levens ask for the staff to advertise for bids and write specs for 
future projects.  

 
 

A. Finance (Sneed, Chairman) 
 

 Operations Financial Statements for March 2019 
Commissioner Sneed made a motion to approve the March 2019 Operation 
financial statements and seconded by Commissioner LaRosa. After 
discussion, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



3 
 

 Utilities Financial Statements for March 2019 
Commissioner Sneed made a motion to approve the March 2019 Utility 
financial statements and seconded by Commissioner LaRosa. After 
discussion, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Operations Claims for March 2019 

Commissioner Sneed made a motion to approve all claims for Operations for 
March 2019 Commissioner Castiglia seconded the motion. After discussion, 
the motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Utilities Claims for March 2019 

Commissioner Sneed made the motion to approve all claims for Utilities for 
March 2019 and Commissioner Castiglia seconded the motion. After 
discussion, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

A. Marketing & Industrial 
 
 

B. Innovation Center 
Stephen Whitt gave an update on the status of the Innovation Center. 
 
 Roof Repairs  

Don Clark gave an update on the roof repair for The Innovation Center.  
Roof repairs will be proceeding after the Board of Supervisors approval.  
 

 Discussion – The Innovation Center  
Commissioner Kirkland gave an update on The Innovation Center by-laws 
and no action taken at this time.  
 

 A/C Maintenance Contract  
Commissioner Castiglia made a motion to approve Ray C. Weaver for the 
A/C maintenance contract for The Innovation Center in the amount of 
$4,200.00 annually and seconded by Commissioner Burke. After discussion, 
the motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Wolf River  

Commissioner Castiglia made a motion to sell the Wolf River property to 
Robert “Hoppy” and Staci Hopkins in the amount of $36,000.00 and 
seconded by Commissioner Burke. 10-2 Affirmative vote. Commissioner 
Bordeaux, Kirkland, Castiglia, Burke, Gollott, Daniels, Mustered-Bentz, 
Schloegel, Sneed, and Levens voted Aye. Commissioner Conway and 
LaRosa voted Nay. Motion passed. 
 
 
 
 

 



4 
 

C. Administrative, Engineering & Maintenance  
 

 
 5 Star Rating 

Commissioner Levens gave an update on the 5 star rating from the Heath 
Department. This is the highest rating that a public water supply can receive.  
 

 Fire Hydrant Repairs 
Don Clark gave an update on the fire hydrant repairs in the Industrial park.  
There are 12-15 fire hydrants that may have to be replaced with a cost being 
in the range of $62,000.00 
 

 Well Control Update 
Commissioner Castiglia made a motion to approve the software update on 
the well control and seconded by Commissioner Conway. After discussion, 
the motion carried unanimously.  

 
 Closure of LBIP Wells  

Don Clark gave a update on the closure of LBIP wells.  
 

Team Reports 
Team Reports was provided. 

 
VI. Directors Report  

Bill Lavers provided a Directors Report.  
   

VII. Old/New Business 
 

 Zoning Variance  
Bill Lavers gave an update on the zoning variance.  
 

 Trust Balance/Lori  
Commissioner LaRosa made a motion to have Wise Carter refund HCDC the 
money and to ask Cotton Fore to clear the title and seconded by 
Commissioner Conway. After discussion, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

 Plat-North Harrison County Industrial Complex (NHCIC) 
Bill Lavers gave an update on the plat-NHCIC and check on the status of the 
plat at the Harrison County Zoning office.  
 

 Executive Session   
Commissioner Sneed made a motion to close the meeting to determine the 
need to consider going into Executive Session to discuss personnel and 
legal on utilities and seconded by Commissioner Burke. After discussion, the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Sneed made a motion to go into Executive Session to discuss  
personnel and legal on utilities and seconded by Commissioner Burke. After 
discussion, the motion carried unanimously. 
 



5 
 

 
Entered into Executive Session 9:27 a.m. 

  
Exited Executive Session 10:15 a.m. 
 
 

 
No action taken. 

 
VIII. Legal  

 
 

IX. Announcements/Notices 
 
 

X. ADJOURN 
There being no further business to come before the Commission, Commissioner Daniels 
made a motion to adjourn and seconded by Commissioner Bordeaux meeting adjourned at 
10:17 a.m. 
 

 
 
____________________________________         __________________________________ 
Jimmy Levens, President    Mark Schloegel, Secretary  



mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit B



















acast
Typewriter
Exhibit C















































REAL ESTATE PURCHASE OFFER 
 

This is an offer by and between the HARRISON COUNTY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION, 

acting for and on behalf of HARRISON COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI, (hereinafter referred to as 

"Seller", and   Vision Property Developers, LLC                                      , (hereinafter referred 

to as "Buyer").  UPON, BEING APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS THIS 

OFFER SHALL BECOME A CONTRACT TO PURCHASE AND SHALL BE BINDING 

ON ALL PARTIES.  

 

WHEREAS, Seller owns certain real property which Seller desires to sell to Buyer and which 

Buyer wishes to purchase from Seller. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual promises, warranties and undertakings expressed 

herein, Seller and Buyer agree as follows: 

 

1. AGREEMENT. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Offer, Seller shall sell to Buyer, 

and Buyer shall purchase from Seller, that certain tract of real property, located in Harrison, 

Mississippi and commonly known as Lot 1 on Seaway Rd (Exhibit A) comprising ±     2.49     acres 

and as more fully described in Exhibit "A".  

    

2. PURCHASE PRICE. The Purchase Price for the Property is $  149,400.00                               

representing $  60,000.00             per acre, plus the cost of the closing.  Said Purchase Price is to 

be paid in cash at closing on or before October 31, 2019, contingent upon financing approval. 

 

3. PURPOSE. The above described land will be used for the specific purpose of  Flex Rental 

Space and Warehouse, and such conveyance shall contain a covenant providing that if the Buyer 

fails to use the land for said purpose within one (1) year from the date of this sale, Seller shall have 

the option, but not the obligation to repurchase said land at the price paid in Section 2 above.  

 

4. DEPOSIT. Buyer has delivered to the Seller an amount equal to one percent (1%) of the 

purchase price sated above.   In the event the transaction contemplated hereby closes as provided 

herein, the Deposit shall be paid to Seller at Closing with Buyer receiving a corresponding credit 

against the portion of the Purchase Price payable in cash at Closing. If the transaction fails to close 

due to the financing contingency to paragraph 2 or operation of paragraph 10, or in the event that 

the Harrison County Development Commission and/or the Harrison County Board of Supervisors 

decline to approve the sale contemplated by this Offer, then the Deposit shall be disbursed to the 

Buyer. If the transaction otherwise fails to close due to Buyers' inability or refusal to perform in 

breach hereof, the Seller shall be entitled to retain the Deposit as liquidated damages. 

 

5. EXPENSES AND PRORATION ITEMS. Each party shall bear its own internal costs 

including attorney's fees. Real estate taxes, utilities, and any other similar assessment affecting 

title to the Property shall be prorated as of the date of Closing. Recording fees to record the deed 

conveying title to the Property shall be paid by Buyer. Seller shall provide deed of conveyance to 

Buyer. 

 



acast
Typewriter
Exhibit D



6. BROKER.  The Seller and Buyer warrant and represent to each other that no broker has assisted 

in the transaction contemplated by this Offer and that no broker is entitled to a commission upon 

closing or otherwise. 

 

7. TITLE.  At Closing, Seller will transfer title to the Property to Buyer by Special Warranty Deed 

free and clear of all liens and encumbrances other than covenants and easements of record, and in 

accordance with the Title Policy.  Buyer shall take title as follows: Vision Property Developers, 

LLC   . 

 

8. INDEMNIFICATION. The Buyer shall protect and indemnify and hold harmless Harrison 

County and the Harrison County Board of Supervisors and the Harrison County Development 

Commission, its members, directors, officers, employees, agents, and any successors thereof from 

any and all loss, damages, suits, penalties, costs, liability, or expenses arising out of any claim for 

loss or damage to property, injuries to or death of persons, contamination of or adverse effect on 

the environment, or any violation of federal, state, or local environmental laws, ordinances, rules, 

or regulations, caused by or resulting from any hazardous materials, substance, gas, or liquid as 

defined by the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act, 42 

U.S.C. 4 8691, et seq., or other similar federal, state, or local law or ordinance in the rules or 

regulations promulgated thereof under which would necessitate response or remedial action under 

the aforesaid laws, ordinances, rules, or regulations, arising from the acts and/or omissions of 

Buyer.  These indemnifications and hold harmless obligations shall be in addition to any and all 

other remedies available to Seller. 

 

9. SELLER REPRESENTATION. Seller knows of no hazardous substances on or under the 

property and, if any such information comes to the attention of Seller prior to closing, Seller will 

promptly notify Buyer in writing. 

 

10. TITLE INSPECTIONS. Buyer at its option, within fifteen (15) days of the Effective Date 

hereof, may obtain a title insurance commitment relating to the Property, together with copies of 

all recorded documents referred to in the commitment, committing to insure marketable fee simple 

title in Buyer, subject only to standard title insurance exceptions, any and all easements, 

rights-of-way of record, covenants, and/or other matters of record and approved by Buyer as herein 

provided. Within fifteen 15 days after Buyer's receipt of the title commitment, Buyer shall give 

Seller notice of any exception(s) to title to which Buyer objects. In the event that Seller is unable 

or unwilling to remove such objectionable exceptions at or before Closing, then to the exclusion 

of any other remedies which might otherwise be available to Buyer, Buyer shall either, at its 

election, (i) proceed to Closing, with no adjustment to Purchase Price, with the objectionable 

exception on title, or (ii) terminate this Offer and upon any such termination, excepting only the 

force and effect of those provisions of this Offer which by their express terms survive termination 

of this Offer, this Offer shall be terminated and of no further force or effect and the parties hereto 

shall have no further rights or obligations under this Offer and the Deposit together with any 

interest earned thereon shall be promptly paid to Buyer as Buyer's sole and exclusive remedy. 

Failure by Buyer to timely provide Seller with notice of objections to title as described above shall 

be deemed to be an acceptance by Buyer of any exceptions to title to any portion of the Property 

which may exist. 

 

11. NOTICES. Any notices given under this Offer shall be in writing and, except as otherwise 

provided herein, shall be deemed given when received. Notices may be sent via facsimile 





transmission. If notice is sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the following 

addresses, notice will be deemed received on the earlier of the date of actual receipt or five (5) 

days after its deposit with the U.S. Post office. Notices sent by mail shall be addressed to the 

following addresses: 

 

If to Seller: Harrison County Development Commission 

 12281 Intraplex Parkway 

 Gulfport, Mississippi 39503 

 Telephone No.: (228) 896-5020 

 Fax No. (228) 896-6020 

 

If to Buyer:   __________________________________ 

   __________________________________ 

__________________________________ 

__________________________________ 

 

 

    

12. EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this Offer shall be on the date it is approved by 

the Harrison County Board of Supervisors. In the event that the Offer is executed on different 

dates, the date of execution shall be considered to be the date it was signed by the last party.   

 

13. RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS. The use of the property to be conveyed pursuant to this 

Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions of all restrictive covenants of record. 

 

14. COVENANTS. The covenants and obligations of this Offer shall survive the execution of the 

Deed. 

 

15. MISCELLANEOUS. This Offer supersedes all prior agreements between the parties with 

respect to the subject matter hereof. Headings are far convenience only and are not a part of this 

Offer Any failure by any of the parties to comply with any of the obligations, agreement, or 

conditions set forth in this Offer may be waived by the other party, but any such waiver shall not 

be deemed a waiver of any other obligations or conditions contained in this Offer. A corporate 

officer signing this document on behalf of a corporate party warrants that he or she has full 

authority to sign this document. This Offer shall be construed and governed under the laws and 

jurisdiction of Mississippi. In interpreting this Offer, the presumption that Offers are to be 

construed against the drafter shall not be applicable. If any provision of this Offer is held to be 

illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, such provisions shall be severable and the remaining provisions 

of this Offer shall remain in full farce and effect. If a lawsuit is filed with respect to this Offer, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to collect all reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. This Offer may 

not be altered, amended, or modified except by written instrument signed by all parties. This Offer 

may be assigned by Buyer with the prior written consent of Seller and Seller's consent shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. 

 

16. CLOSING. The sale of said property is to be closed on or before__________________. 

  

17. APPROVALS. This Offer is conditioned upon approval of same by the Harrison County 

Development Commission and the Harrison County Board of Supervisors. 





 

18. MERGER.  This Offer contains all of the agreements and representations between the parties. 

No change or modifications of this agreement shall be valid unless the same is in writing and 

signed by the Buyer and Seller. 

 

19. SAVING CLAUSE. In the event any term or provision of this Offer should be determined to 

be illegal, unenforceable, or invalid, the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected 

thereby and shall be read and construed as if such illegality, unenforceable, or invalid terms or 

provisions were not originally contained therein. 

 

20. COUNTERPARTS. This agreement may be executed in counterparts. 

 

The parties have hereunto set their hands with the intent to be legally bound as of the dates by their 

signature. 

 

 

 

SELLER: HARRISON COUNTY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

  

By:          Date:    

 

 

BUYER:  

 

Buyer:          Date:    

 

Buyer:          Date:    

 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

              

 

 

Harrison County Board of Supervisors        





STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  
COUNTY OF HARRISON 

SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

 

DECLARATION OF 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS  

HARRISON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL PARKS 

 

 WHEREAS, the undersigned, Harrison County Development Commission and the 

Harrison County board of supervisors are the owners of that certain real property known as the 

HARRISON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL PARKS, a subdivision according to the official map and 

plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the chancery Clerk of Harrison County, First 

Judicial District, State of Mississippi, in Plat Book ____ at Page ____ thereof.  

 

 WHEREAS, owner is desirous of having such described property become subject to the 

hereinafter set forth restriction, NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE 

PRESENTS that, effective immediately, all of said property shall be subject to the following 

restrictions: 

1. (A)  PRIMARY INTENDED USE – All sites in North 

Harrison County Industrial Park, shall be used for the following purposes: 

(a)      Office 

(b)      Warehouse 

(c)      Research 

acast
Typewriter
Exhibit E



(a)      Educational 

(b)      Distribution 

(c)      Light Manufacturing/assembly 

(d)      Commercial support facilities incident to the specific 

          permitted uses enumerated in this paragraph. 

(B) ADDITIONAL USES - Uses which are neither specifically prohibited nor 

specifically authorized by these protective covenants may be permitted if a 

proposal detailing the described use is submitted to and approved in writing by 

Harrison County Development Commission and the use is permitted by the 

ordinances and building codes of Harrison County and the City of Jurisdiction. 

Approval or disapproval of such proposals shall be based upon the effect of such 

or use on other properties subject to these protective covenants or upon the 

occupants thereof.  

2. Such property shall be used for: 

(a) Tank farms or bulk storage and distribution facilities 

  (b) Open storage or any form 

  (c) Asphalt or concrete manufacturing plants 

  (d) Retail sales of merchandise 

3. No building or other construction shall be erected or placed on any lot or altered, 

until the complete construction plans and specifications have been submitted to 

the Engineering Committee of the Harrison County Development Commission 



(hereinafter referred to as HCDC) and have been approved by HCDC for 

conformance with quality of workmanship and materials, harmony and external 

design and for compliance with these covenants, conditions, and restrictions. In 

the event HCDC fails to approve any application within thirty (30) days after 

plans and specifications have been submitted, approval will not be required and 

the related covenants shall be deemed to have been fully complied with.  

4. If such facilities and property are leased or sold in whole or part by its original 

owner or lessee, such purchaser or lessee shall apply to HCDC for permit to 

operate such facility unless its operation is identical to the original use of such 

property. Such permit shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

5. Fences shall be of chain link or better construction, i.e. masonry or wooden, and 

shall not be erected closer to the street that the front edge of the building 

improvement. 

 NO OUTSIDE STORAGE IS ALLOWED. 

6. All driveways and parking areas, on any lot, shall be paved with either concrete or 

asphalt of a quality suitable for the intended traffic. Entrances from public roads 

shall be provided with radii for the intended traffic.  

7. Off-street paved parking spaces, at least nine (9) feet wide and eighteen (18) feet 

long exclusive of access or maneuvering area, ramps and other appurtenances, 

shall be located off the street right-of-way as follows:  

 One (1) space for each two hundred (200) square feet of gross office area. 

There shall be, without exception, a minimum of one (1) space for every 



two (2) employees occupying the premises. NO ON-STREET PARKING 

IS ALLOWED AT ANY TIME. 

8.  All buildings must be set back a minimum of forty-five (45) feet from   

  the right-of-way line of any street dedicated for public use. 

 9. The use of overhead doors on the street side of buildings shall be  

  discouraged: however, a limited number may be approved by HCDC  

  provided that the wall containing such overhead door is recessed a  

minimum of twenty (20) feet behind the front edge of the building and such 

overhead doors used on the front of the building shall be constructed not closer 

than sixty-five (65) feet from the street property line surrounding the building.  

10. A drainage plan prepared and certified by a registered professional  

 engineer must be included in the construction drawings.  

 (a) Drainage plans shall provide for positive drainage to existing  

  drainage ditches or structures and/or street right-of-way’s and  

  shall not be directed to adjacent property. Drainage ways  

  shall conform to all requirements of all applicable governmental 

  authorities, as in effect from time to time, and no storage, 

  discharge or drainage water, waste, chemicals or other residue 

  shall be allowed except in strict compliance with all applicable 



  governmental rules, regulations and authorities, as in effect  

  from time to time. 

 (b) The first ½ inch of stormwater runoff from all impervious  

  surfaces to be developed (parking lots, roads, drives, and roofs)   

shall be retained onsite and treated through infiltration, evapotranspiration, 

or other approved method. Plans and specifications showing how this will 

be accomplished is part of the above referenced drainage plan. Plan is 

subject to final review by the Mississippi Department of Environmental 

Quality. All sites directly adjacent to wetland areas shall have a minimum 

of fifteen (15) foot wide grassed buffer between any improvements and 

the wetland. 

(c) All construction projects shall have an approved Stormwater  

 Pollution Prevention Plan on file prior to the commencement of  

 earthwork. 

11. No lot shall be used in whole or in part for the storage of rubbish or  

other waste, of any character whatsoever, nor for the storage of any property or 

thing that will cause any lot to appear in an unclean or untidy condition or that 

will be obnoxious to the eye or that would otherwise constitute either a public or 

private nuisance; nor shall any substance, thing, or material be kept upon any lot 

that will emit foul or obnoxious odor. 

12. An area not less than twenty (20) percent of the lot area (exclusive of  



 street right-of-way and storage areas) shall be designated and suitably 

prepared for lawn and landscaping. A minimum of fifty (50) percent of this lawn 

and landscaping area shall be provided between the front building line and the 

abutting street and shall be visible from the street. 

13. Electric/Telephone/TV Cable service shall be underground from the  

 point of service at the lot line to the building. 

14. The structure and ground on each tract of land shall be maintained in a 

 neat and attractive manner. Upon the owner’s failure to do so, HCDC,  

 its successors or assigns, may, at its option, after giving the owner 

ten (10) days written notice sent to his last known address, have the grass, weeds, 

and vegetation cut when, and as often as, the same is necessary in its judgement, 

and have dead vegetation removed from its premises. Said cutting and removing 

shall be at the property owners’ expense. The owner shall be obligated to 

reimburse HCDC for any expense incurred as a result of said cutting and 

removing. Upon the property owner’s failure to maintain the exterior of any 

structure in good appearance, HCDC may, at its option, do the following: 

Giving the property owner three (3) months written notice, sent to his last 
known address, make repairs and improve the appearance in a reasonable 
and workmanlike manner. The property owner of such lot shall reimburse 
HCDC for the cost of any work as above required, including ten (10) 
percent interest per annum from the time the work is completed, and to 
secure such reimbursement, HCDC shall have a lien upon such building or 
lot enforceable as herein provided. Upon performing the work herein 
provided, HCDC shall be entitled to file in the office of the Chancery 
Court of Harrison County a notice of its claim of lien by virtue of this 
contract with the property owner. Said notice shall state the cost of said 



work, including interest, and shall contain a description of the property 
against which the enforcement of the lien is sought. The lien herein 
provided shall date from the time that the work is completed, but shall not 
be binding against creditors or subsequent purchasers for a valuable 
consideration and without notice until said notice is recorded. The lien 
herein provided shall be due and payable forthwith upon the completion of 
the work and if not paid, the lien may be enforced by foreclosure in court 
in the same manner as mortgages. 

15. Signs are permitted in the Harrison County Industrial Parks as hereafter regulated, 

provided that no sign shall be permitted which is not accessory to the business 

conducted on the property and then only if in compliance with the following 

requirements: 

(a) Business signs may be erected providing the sum area of all signs does not 

exceed two (2) square feet per linear foot of building frontage. The total 

area of business signs shall not exceed one hundred (100) square feet. 

Such signs shall be attached to the principal building and shall not extend 

more than five (5) feet above the roof line.  

(b) In addition to the building signs, each separate lot may have one (1) 

freestanding nameplate sign this is accessory to the business conducted on 

the premises. Any freestanding name plate sign as permitted by this 

section must meet all of the following building requirements. 

   (1)  The height shall not exceed six (6) feet 

(2) No freestanding nameplate shall be closer than five (5) feet from 

any abutting street right-of-way or property line. 

(3) The area of the sign shall not exceed nine (9) square feet. 



(4) In the event there is more than one (1) tenant in the building, each 

tenant is entitled to one (1) name plate sign attached to the free-

standing sign provided, however, each name plate sign shall be of 

uniform dimensions and lettering, and no name plate sign shall 

exceed nine (9) square feet in area. 

(c) No sign shall be lighted by means of flashing or intermittent illumination. 

16. The covenants are to run with the land and shall be binding on all parties and all 

persons claiming under them for a period of twenty (20) years from the date these 

covenants are recorded. 

17. Enforcement of these paragraphs shall be by proceedings at law or in equity, or 

both, against any person or persons violating or attempting to violate any 

covenant, either to restrain the violation or to recover damages. 

 

 Adopted on the ______ of ______, ______. 

Witness my signature on this the ______ day of _____________, _______. 

   

HARRISON COUNTY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

   BY: _____________________________________ 

   PRESIDENT  

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 



SECRETARY 

HARRISON COUNTY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

   BY: _____________________________________ 

    PRESIDENT 

 

ATTEST:  

___________________________________ 

CLERK 

 

   _______________________________________________ 

 

 

   _______________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI 



COUNTY OF HARRISON 

 PERSONALLY came and appeared before me on this the ______ day of  

____________________ , ______ , the undersigned authority in and for the County and State 

aforesaid, the within named _________________ , President, and _____________________ , Jr . 

, Secretary, of the Harrison County Development Commission, a public entity of the State of 

Mississippi, and who acknowledged that they signed and delivered the above and foregoing 

instrument on the day and year therein set out as the act and deed of the Harrison County 

Development Commission, they having full authority to do so. 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal of office on this  ______ day of  

____________________ , ______ .  

      ___________________________________ 

       NOTARY PUBLIC 

  

My Commission Expires : 

_____________________ 

 

 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI 

COUNTY OF HARRISON 

 PERSONALLY came and appeared before me on this the ______ day of  

____________________ , ______ , the undersigned authority in and for the County and State 

aforesaid, the within named _________________ , President, and _____________________ , 

Clerk , of the Harrison County Board of Supervisors, a public entity of the State of Mississippi, 



and who acknowledged that they signed and delivered the above and foregoing instrument on the 

day and year therein set out as the act and deed of the Harrison County Board of Supervisors, 

they having full authority to do so. 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal of office on this  ______ day of  

____________________ , ______ .  

      ___________________________________ 

       NOTARY PUBLIC 

  

My Commission Expires : 

_____________________ 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

















mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit G















mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit H



mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit I 







mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit J 



mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit K 



mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit L 



mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit M



mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit N



mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit O 



mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit R























HCDC Report for April 2019  

(May 2019 FULL COMMISSION MEETING) 

April 2019 Occupancy                 98% (2 offices) Main Building 

                                                         99% Modular Annex (1 office) 

April Activity 

 April 4                                 Starting a Business-First Steps”  Business 101 Series 

 April 16                                HCDC BOD 

 April 16                              ”Starting a Business-First Steps”  Business 101 Series     

 April 18                              “How to Develop a Business Plan” Business 101 Series                        

 April 23                              “How to Develop a Business Plan” Business 101 Series 

 April 25                              “How to Develop a Business Plan” Business 101 Series                        

 April 25                              “Cash Flow Projections Business Plan” Business 101 Series  

 April 30                               “Cash Flow Projections Business Plan” Business 101 Series               

Upcoming Activity 

 May 2                                  “Think Like an Entrepreneur” Business 101 Series 

 May 7                                 “Think Like an Entrepreneur” Business 101 Series  

 May 9                                 Starting a Business-First Steps”  Business 101 Series 

 May 14                               Starting a Business-First Steps”  Business 101 Series 

 May 17                              Small Business Resource Conference                   

 May 21                              “How to Develop a Business Plan” Business 101 Series 

 May 23                            “How to Develop a Business Plan” Business 101 Series    

 May 28                             “Cash Flow Projections Business Plan” Business 101 Series  

 May 30                              “How to Develop a Business Plan” Business 101 Series                            

 May 30                            “Cash Flow Projections Business Plan” Business 101 Series 

 July 24                               Doing Business with the American Red Cross Event 

Offered at the Trent Lott Center, USM Main Campus, Hattiesburg 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                  

mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit S



 MATRIX OF POSSIBLE RENTS                                                         100%         65% 
10225sf office (44 offices) ($16.99sf) (APR$15)                         173723     112920** 
4032sf modular addition (12 offices) ($16.99sf) (APR$15)        26148        23085** 
18752sf warehouse* (15 warehouses) ($5.00sf) (APR$4)          93760       60944*** 
Total possible rents        (year)                                                       267483     173864 
                                           (year)                                                        293631     196949**** 
                                           (month)                                                     22291      14489 
                                           (month)                                                     24470       16413**** 
 
*less dead space 20286-1534= 18752 -  final 4 spaces not readily adaptable for one overhead    
                                                     and one walk through door per unit  
 
** 13% premium to appraised rates 
***25% premium to appraised rates 
****does not include co-working rental 
 
New residents get 35% discount to market 
Tenant Sources: startups; acceleration clients; econ dev at market; resource providers 



1 

AMENDED BYLAWS OF THE  

HARRISON COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATION, INC. 

  
ARTICLE I 
GENERAL 

 Section 1.   Name.  This organization is incorporated under the laws of the State of Mississippi and 

in accordance with Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and shall hereafter be known as The 

Harrison County Economic Development Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”). 

 Section 2.  Purpose.  The purposes for which the Foundation is created are to encourage, foster 

and advance economic growth through industrial, commercial, and tourism development, to promote 

civic pride and awareness of Harrison County and to provide facilities to promote the same, and such 

other purposes, in connection therewith, as provided for in the Articles of Incorporation. 

  Section 3.  Limitations of Methods.  The Foundation is organized and incorporated as a non-profit 

organization as defined in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and shall observe all local, state 

and Federal laws which apply to thereto.             

ARTICLE II 
MEMBERSHIP 

 Section 1.  Eligibility.  Membership in the Foundation shall be open to persons who are interested 

in the economic development of Harrison County. 

Section 2.  Meetings. The Foundation will hold not less than annual meetings to develop 

strategies and programs for the enrichment of the Harrison County.  

ARTICLE III 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 1.  Composition.  Control of the affairs and property of the Foundation shall be vested in 

a Board of Directors consisting of seven (7) members, three (3) of which shall be appointed by the Board 

of Commissioners of the HCDC and four of which shall be elected by the membership of the Foundation 

at its annual meeting. Should the term of a Commissioner of the HCDC expire or otherwise become 

vacated, such action shall also automatically vacate his position as a Director of the Foundation. 

mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit T 



2 

 Section 2.  Election of Directors and Term.    Those initial directors chosen by the Membership 

shall initially serve a one year term for one director and a two year term for the second director, and a 

three year term for two directors.  Thereafter, such directors shall serve for three year terms.    Directors 

initially appointed by the HCDC shall serve one for three years, one for two years, and one for one year. 

Thereafter, each HCDC appointed Director shall serve for two years.   

 Section 3.  Authority.  The Board of Directors of the Foundation shall have final, conclusive and 

non-reviewable authority to exercise all rights, powers, authorities and purposes granted by the Articles 

or otherwise conferred by law upon the Foundation, including but not limited to, the right and power to 

invest and reinvest funds of the Foundation or any part thereof, in such property, real, personal and mixed, 

as they may determine proper; and the right and power to lease, sell, encumber, dispose of and otherwise 

manage and deal with the same upon such terms and conditions and for such consideration, or without 

any consideration, as said Board of Directors, in their discretion, may determine. The Board of Directors 

shall have the right and power to borrow upon such terms and conditions as they may determine and to 

execute and deliver promissory notes, bond, debentures, contracts, deeds, deeds of trust and other 

instruments for and on behalf of the Foundation. The rights and powers exercised by the Board of 

Directors shall be done by any Officer, Officers or agents who may be designated by the Board of Directors 

so to do. 

 Section 4.  Management.  The Board of Directors of the Foundation shall employ an Executive 

Director and shall fix the salary and other consideration of employment. The Executive Director shall 

employ other personnel and fix salary and other considerations within the parameters of the budget, 

subject to review by the Board of Directors. 

 Section 5.  Vacancies.  In the event a vacancy should occur during a Foundation appointed 

Director’s term, the remaining members of the Board of Directors selected by the membership of the 

Foundation may select a new Director to fill the unexpired term. In the event a vacancy should occur 

during a HCDC appointed Director’s term, the Board of Commissioners of the HCDC may select a new 

Director to fill the unexpired term. 

 
 
 
 



3 

ARTICLE IV 
MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS 

 

 Section 1.  Meetings.  Meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at the principal office of the 

HCDC, or at such other place(s) as shall be designated by the Board. Special meetings of the Directors may 

be called at any time by the President or the Executive Director upon request of the President and written 

notice of such special meetings shall be given at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of each meeting. 

 Section 2.  Quorums.  Any four (4) Directors shall constitute a quorum at any meeting; provided 

however, at least one member appointed by the HCDC must be in attendance to establish a quorum. The 

vote of a majority of those present shall constitute the legal, valid, and binding act of the Foundation in 

all matters. 

 Section 3.  Open meetings.  All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to the public at all 

times unless declared an executive session as hereinafter provided. The Board of Directors may enter into 

executive session for the transaction of business; provided, however, all meetings shall commence as open 

meetings and an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all members present shall be required to declare 

an executive session. Any Director shall have a right to request by motion a closed determination upon 

the issue of whether or not to declare an executive session. Such motion, by a majority vote, shall require 

the meeting to be closed for a preliminary determination of the necessity for executive session. No other 

business shall be transacted until the discussion of the nature of the matter requiring executive session 

have been completed and a vote, as required above, has been taken on the issue. The reason for holding 

such an executive session shall be stated in an open meeting and the reason so stated shall be limited to 

one or more of the following purposes: (a) transaction of business and discussion of personnel matters or 

the character, professional competence, or physical or mental health of any such person; (b) strategy 

sessions or negotiations with respect to prospective litigation when an open meeting would have a 

detrimental effect on the litigating position of the Foundation; (c) transaction of business and discussion 

regarding the report, development or cause of action regarding security personnel, plans or devices; (d) 

investigative proceedings of the Foundation regarding allegations of misconduct or violation of law; (e) 

cases of extraordinary emergency which would pose immediate or irrevocable harm or damage to persons 

or property under control of the Foundation; (f) transaction of business and discussion regarding the 



4 

prospective purchase, sale or leasing of lands; (g) transaction of business and discussion regarding the 

location, relocation or expansion of a business or an industry; and (h) transaction of business and 

discussion regarding employment and termination of employees. The total vote on the question of 

entering into an executive decision shall be recorded and spread upon the minutes of the Foundation. Any 

vote whereby executive session is declared shall be applicable only to that particular meeting on that 

particular day. The Board of Directors may make and enforce reasonable rules and regulations for the 

conduct of persons attending the meetings. 

 Section 4.  Minutes.   Minutes shall be kept of all meetings of the Board of Directors whether in 

open or executive session, showing the members present and absent; the time, date and place of the 

meeting; an accurate recording of any actions taken at such meetings; a record, by individual member, or 

any votes taken; and any other information that the Board of Directors request be included or reflected 

in their respective minutes. The minutes shall be recorded within a reasonable time not to exceed thirty 

(30) days after recess or adjournment and shall be open to public inspection during regular business hours. 

  

ARTICLE V 
OFFICERS 

 

 Section 1.  Selection of Officers.  The Officers of the Foundation shall be a President, Vice-President 

and Secretary-Treasurer selected by The Board of Directors from their own number, to serve for a period 

of one (1) year beginning each January. No Officer or Director of the Foundation shall receive any salary 

whatever for services rendered as such Officer or Director. 

 Section 2.  Terms of Office.  The Officers of the Foundation shall hold office during their term and 

until their successors are elected. Any Officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be 

removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors.  

 Section 3.  Duties.  

 President.  The President d shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors; he shall have 

general management of the business of the Foundation and shall see that all orders and resolutions of the 

Board are carried into effect. The President, as directed by the Board, shall execute bonds, mortgages, 

deeds of trust and other contracts requiring the seal, under the seal of the Foundation.  



5 

 Vice-President.  The Vice-President shall, in the absence of the President, perform the duties and 

exercise the powers of the President, and shall perform each other duties as the Board of Directors may 

prescribe. 

 Secretary-Treasurer.  The Secretary-Treasurer shall, in the absence of the President and Vice-

President, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the President. The Secretary-Treasurer shall 

monitor the maintenance of official records and the safe-guarding of all funds of the Foundation. The 

Secretary-Treasurer shall have authority to affix the Seal and attest to all instruments requiring 

attestation. 

 Executive Director.  The Executive Director shall see that the minutes are kept of all meetings of 

the Board of Directors; shall have charge of all records of the Foundation together with the Seal and 

Charter, and when the Secretary-Treasurer is unavailable, shall have authority to affix the seal and attest 

all instruments requiring attestation. The Executive Director shall give any notice required of meetings 

herein provided and shall perform such other duties as may be determined by the Board of Directors. The 

Executive Director shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements and shall deposit 

all money and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Foundation, in such depositories 

as may be designated by the Board of Directors. The Officers shall disburse the funds of the Foundation 

as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, and shall render to the Board of Directors at the regular 

meetings thereof, and  whenever in addition they may require it, an account of all transactions of the 

Foundation and of the financial condition of the Foundation.  The Executive Director shall give the 

Foundation a bond in a sum as required by the Board of Directors, and with one or more sureties 

satisfactory to the Board of Directors, for the faithful performance of the duties of said office. 

 Section 4.  Vacancies.  If the office of any Officer becomes vacant by any reason n the Board of 

Directors shall choose a successor, or successors from among its members once such vacancy has been 

filled and the new Director can participate is said selection. The person thus elected shall hold office for 

the unexpired term in respect of which such vacancy occurred. 

 

 

 

 



6 

ARTICLE VI 
DISSOLUTION 

 

 Section 1.  Procedure.  If the Foundation is dissolved in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Mississippi or finally liquidated, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or making provisions for the 

payments of all of the lawful debts and liabilities of the Foundation, distribute all of the assets of the 

Foundation to one or more of the following categories of recipients as the Board of Directors shall 

determine: A non-profit organization or organizations having similar aims and objectives as the 

Foundation and which way be selected as an appropriate recipients of such assets, as long as such 

organization or each of such organizations shall qualify as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) 

of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or to the State of Mississippi or the county or local 

government(s) located within the area then comprising the Foundation, exclusively for public uses or 

purposes. 

ARTICLE VII 

AMENDMENTS 
 

 Section 1.  Revisions.  The Board of Directors of the Foundation shall have the power to make, 

amend and repeal by-laws of the Foundation at any regular or special meeting of the Board by a majority 

vote thereof, provided specific notice of any proposed by-laws changes, including the text of each change 

to be proposed be given to all members at least ten (10) days in advance of any meeting in which a vote 

is to be taken by such amendment.  

 



SUBJECT: ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY 

APPLIES TO: ALL EMPLOYEES 

Policy:  It is the policy of Harrison County Development Commission to establish reasonable and 

necessary controls to ensure adequate attendance to meet business needs. 

Procedure:  

 

1.    Working schedules and starting times are established by the Executive Director based on business 

needs.  

3.    In the event of absence or tardiness from an assigned work schedule, the employee is required to 

report the absence/tardiness to the Executive Director. When reporting absence/tardiness, the employee 

must communicate absence/tardiness to Executive Director or other designated individual as specified 

by management. In the event the employee cannot reach the Executive Director, the absence/tardy 

should be reported to the Director of Finance. It is important for the employee to communicate the 

absence within one hour of scheduled start time. 

4.    The company reserves the right to require an employee to submit a physician’s certificate in the 

event of repeated absences for medical reasons or in the event of medical absences exceeding two days. 

5.    Excessive absenteeism is defined as 8 or more instances of absence in a rolling 12-month period. 

Such excessive absenteeism is subject to corrective discipline. Management may elect to forego 

corrective discipline and move directly to termination.  

6. Excessive tardiness is defined as 12 or more instances of being tardy in a rolling 12-month period. 
Such excessive tardiness is subject to corrective discipline.  Management may elect to forego corrective 
discipline and move directly to termination. 

6.    In the event an employee is absent for three days or more without prior notice or approval, such 

absence is viewed as job abandonment. The employee is then separated from employment as a 

voluntary quit. 

7.    The Director of Finance is responsible for maintaining attendance records and for advising the 

Executive Director if an employee’s absence or lateness exceeds the guidelines of this policy. 

 

mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit U 



mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit V



mwalker
Typewriter
Exhibit W 








